HoQ

5:30

5:32

6:00

6:03

6:05

6:07

6:17

6:22

6:27

WATAUGA

BOARD OF EDUCATION

Margaret E. Gragg Educational Center

175 Pioneer Trail Boone, NC 28607

WATAUGA (828) 264-7190

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING

AGENDA
January 11, 2021
5:30 P.M.
CALL TO ORDER
CLOSED SESSION

A. Approval of Minutes

B. Reportable Offenses — N.C.G.S.115C-288(g)

C. Student Records - N.C.G.S.143-318.11(a)(1)

D. Personnel — N.C.G.S.143-318.11(a)(6)

OPEN SESSION CALL TO ORDER
WELCOME/MOMENT OF SILENCE
DISCUSSION AND ADJUSTMENT OF AGENDA
PUBLIC RECOGNITION

A. ACTFL Florence Steiner Award
B. FLANC Teacher of the Year

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

STUDENTS’ REPORT

CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approval of Minutes for 12/14/2020
B. Budget Amendment

. Surplus Report approval

D. Policies: Technical

1600 Hearings before the Board
4002 Parental Involvement

4023 Education for Pregnant and Parenting Students

Board Chair

Board Chair
Board Chair

Board Chair

Dr. Susan Mochen

Dr. Scott Elliott

Ms. Haleigh Lawson

Ms. Isabella Sibaja

Dr. Scott Elliott

4035/7236 Title IX Sexual Harassment — Prohibited Conduct and Reporting Process

4036/7237 Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Process

4202/5029/7272 Service Animals in Schools
4328 Gang-Related Activity

E. Approval of Calendar 2021-2022
F. Personnel Report



6:37

7:07

7:22
7:32

7:42

10.

11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

Page two, Agenda, January 11, 2020

ORIENTATION AND BEST PRACTICES

COVID AND SCHOOL OPERATIONS UPDATE

BOARD OPERATIONS
BOARD COMMENTS

ADJOURNMENT

MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION

Dr. Scott Elliott

Dr. Scott Elliott



WATAUGA COUNTY
BOARD OF EDUCATION

Margaret E. Gragg Educational Center

WATAUGA 175 Pioneer Trail Boone, NC 28607

(828) 264-7190 (828) 264-7196

DATE: December 14, 2020

PRESENT: In person: Gary Childers, Steve Combs,
Joining remotely: Jay Fenwick,
Marshall Ashcraft, and Jason Cornett
Dr. Scott Elliott, Superintendent, Dr.
Steven Martin, Assistant Superintendent

TIME: 5:30 p.m.

PLACE: Margaret E. Gragg Educational Center

CALL TO ORDER

Dr. Scott Elliott, Superintendent, called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. He asked for a
motion to enter closed session. The motion was made by Jay Fenwick, seconded by Steve
Combs, and approved by all of the board.

A motion was made by Steve Combs and seconded by Jason Cornett to move to open session.
The motion passed unanimously at 5:53 PM.

OPEN SESSION

Dr. Elliott called the meeting to order in open session at 6:00PM.

ELECTION OF BOARD CHAIR

Jay Fenwick, following a list of Dr. Childers’ accomplishments during his role as an
educator, Principal, Principal of the year, and in community service as High Country United
Way Director, Children’s Council Board and CCCTI Board among others, nominated Dr.
Gary Childers as Board Chair. The board members voted unanimously in consent. Dr.
Childers thanked Dr. Fenwick and stressed his honor to accept the position, but looked to all
of the Board members to continue working together for the benefit of the school system.

ELECTION OF BOARD VICE CHAIR

Dr. Childers opened the floor for nominations as the Vice-Chair. Following a list of service
and accomplishments such as 14 years on the school board and community service, Jason
Cornett nominated Steve Combs for Vice-Chair. A call for other nominations yielded none.
The board members voted unanimously in consent. Mr. Combs accepted the nomination
with gratitude and enthusiasm for the position, and stated that he looked forward to serving.



Meeting Minutes, December 14, 2020, Page two

WELCOME/MOMENT OF SILENCE

Board Chair, Gary Childers began the meeting with a moment of silence.
DISCUSSION AND ADJUSTMENT OF AGENDA

There were no adjustments to the agenda.

SUPERINTENDENTS REPORT

Dr. Elliott welcomed the staff, the board members attending in person and virtually.

He welcomed Marshall Ashcraft and welcomed back Jason Cornett and Steve Combs. He thanked
everyone for their flexibility that evening and thanked Mr. Ashcraft, Mr. Cornett, and Dr. Fenwick
for joining the meeting remotely.

He welcomed Ms. Sibaja and Ms. Lawson and thanked them for their continued leadership and
excellent engagement with the board.

He congratulated Dr. Childers and Mr. Combs for their new positions on the board.
He welcomed Mr. Ian Taylor of the Watauga Democrat to the meeting.

He clarified that all three of the newly elected board members had signed their affidavits in lieu of a
formal swearing in ceremony that evening, making them legally and fully authorized to execute their
duties that evening. He noted that Judge Rebecca Eggers-Gryder would attend the January 11 meeting
where Mr. Ashcraft, Mr. Combs, and Mr. Cornett would ceremonially take the oath of office.

Dr. Elliott thanked AppHealthCare for partnering with the school system on a series of COVID testing
events over a three week period. Two hundred forty people were tested at two schools, with a third
event the following week at Cove Creek School. He encouraged anyone who needed or wanted a test
to attend. He stated that rapid antigen tests acquired by AppHealth through CARES act funds would
soon be available for testing in schools by trained staff members.

He thanked corporate partners SkyLine/SkyBest for their recent grant to the Watauga County Schools
(WCS) athletics programs. The $3,500 grant would support many needs at both the middle and high
school levels.

He thanked the Watauga Education Foundation for representing Watauga County Schools in the
County Drive-through Christmas parade the previous Saturday. The event raised good cheer and
much deserved attention for the work of the Education Foundation. He encouraged support of the
Education Foundation, perhaps as a Christmas honorarium. Information is available under the About
Us tab on the school system's website.

He offered sincere thanks to all staff members, students, and parents who had worked so hard together
to support the students and schools that semester with grace and flexibility.

He wished everyone a merry, peaceful, and restful Christmas and holiday season.



Meeting Minutes, December 14, 2020, Page three

STUDENTS REPORT

Ms. Haleigh Lawson and Ms. Isabella Sibaja, student representatives gave their report. They noted
that the students had just experienced their first virtual snow day. They stated that they had received
much positive feedback. They noted that many students were preparing to take end of course exams.
They spoke about the Model Junior Year program provided by GEAR UP and UNC-Asheville, which
provided asynchronous assignments to help prepare for the college application and financial aid
process. They thanked the nursing and custodial staff who had helped make school attendance
possible and safe.

CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of Minutes for 11/9/2020
B. Surplus Declaration approval
C. Budget Amendment
D. Lottery Applications
E. Approval of Contract for LINQ
F. Approval of Contract for WHS Lighting
G. Approval of MOU with Watauga County Sheriff for SRO
H. Personnel Report

Steve Combs moved to approved consent agenda items A-H, with amendment to the minutes to
include the presence of Ms. Lawson, and to reflect the audit results with accurate accounting
language, “Mr. Wike offered his unqualified opinion of a clean audit report.” The vote to approve
was unanimous.

PUBLIC COMMENT
There were no public comments at the December 2020 Board Meeting.

BOARD OPERATIONS

Dr. Elliott spoke about committees and noted that there may need to be changes to committees and
representation from the board, which could be discussed at the next meeting.

Two board members would need to be chosen to serve on the facilities committee, which would
review proposals from architects. Dr. Childers offered to represent the board and Dr. Fenwick
offered to serve, but yielded to Mr. Steve Combs should he wish to serve, noting his previous
experience with the building of the high school.

Dr. Childers thanked Dr. Fenwick for his previous service. Dr. Childers offered to serve and
appointed Mr. Combs to sit on the Facilities committee. The first meeting would be on December
22" at noon via Zoom. At that meeting, a recommendation would be made to the commissioners
for the selection of the architect.



Meeting Minutes, December 14, 2020, Page tour

Dr. Childers noted that all would be interested in any changes to student attendance following the
holiday break, and said that the level of infection in the community could change during the coming
weeks. Dr. Elliott was not ready to offer a recommendation until after the holidays when the
community COVID level could be evaluated. He thought that a phased approach, perhaps grades
K-3 on plan A, followed by grades 4 and 5, might be considered. He stated that other districts which
were on a 5 day plan had not seen increased infection, but have seen disruption due to precautionary
quarantining. Dr. Elliott recommended having further discussion at the January meeting, and a work
session prior to the February meeting with AppHealth Care, with more opportunity to discuss further
plans to bring back more students. Dr. Elliott noted that he had increasing concerns about student
health and education due to them not being in school more frequently.

Dr. Fenwick spoke about the Technology committee’s discussion about one-to-one, connectivity,
hotspot devices and additional devices for the future, noting the cost. He wanted the board to be
aware for budgeting in the future. He mentioned MCNC’s security recommendations regarding
WCS cyber security needs and the prioritized plan.

BOARD COMMENTS

Mr. Ashcraft stated his enthusiasm to work with the board for the benefit of the school system. Dr.
Fenwick and Jason Cornett shared their enthusiasm to work with the board. Steve Combs echoed
their sentiments and thanked the other members for their trust in him. He felt that WCS is the best
school system and looked forward to the coming year. He wished a merry Christmas to all.

Dr. Childers expressed his gratefulness that the board and community feels for the staff,
administration, students, and families and thanked everyone for their contribution during the
pandemic in providing the best education and the best opportunities for everyone during the past 9
months. He wished everyone a happy holiday, and hoped that with the first administration of the
vaccines, more improvement can be seen.

-

ADJOURNMENT

Steve Combs moved to adjourn which was seconded by Jay Fenwick. The Board unanimously
approved the motion at 7:07 PM.

Gary Childers, Board Chair Dr. Scott Elliott, Superintendent



WATAUGA COUNTY

"‘ BOARD OF EDUCATION

Margaret E. Gragg Education Center

WATAUGA 175 Pioneer Trail, Boone, NC 28607

MEMORANDUM

TO: Dr. Scott Elliott, Superintendent
Members, Watauga County Board of Education

FROM: Ly Marze, Finance Officer
DATE: January 11, 2021
RE: 2020-21 Budget Amendment #2

Attached is Budget Amendment #2 that changes totals in Watauga County Schools 2020-21 adopted
budget.

After approval of this Budget Amendment, the budget for all funds will appear as follows:

Adopted Amended
Fund Budget Amendments Budget

Local Current Expense $ 14,187,099 $ 0 $ 14,187,099
State Public School 32,197,758 390,409 32,588,167
Federal Grants 2,137,133 0 2,137,133
School Nutrition 1,466,500 0 1,466,500
Extended Learning Centers 517,725 0 L7725
Capital Outlay 2,217,099 0 2,217,099
Special Revenue 481,602 0 481,602

Total $ 53,204,916 $ 390,409 $ 53,595,325

Ms. Ly Marze, Director of Finance * marzel@wataugaschools.org * 828-264-7190 * (Fax) 828-264-7196



Watauga County Schools
BUDGET AMENDMENT #2
January 11, 2021

Be it resolved that the following amendments be made to the Budget Resolution for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

BA #2-1 Explanation:

This amendment is to budget state transfers and additional state allotment dollars as
reflected in DPI revisions #30-35.

Account Number Account Title Amount
1.5410.048.180 Test Result Bonus (1,076)
1.6550.056.165 Transportation 275,479
1.5210.063.142 Special Program Funds - EC 98,740
1.5860.128.418 CRF Home and Community WiFi 17,266
Total Appropriations 390,409
Revenues:
Account Number Account Title Amount
1.3100 State Allocation 390,409
Total Revenues 390,409

Page 1 of 1



Declaration of Surplus Items - January 2021
Date Approved:

Hardin Park
Asset # Quantity Description Usable _Unusable
29719 1 Dell Optiplex 790 Desktop Computer 1

1 Dell Computer Monitor 1

4 Pyle Driver Pro Speakers 4
500652 1 TOA BG-115 Amplifier 1

7 S 2
Watauga High School
Asset # Quantity Description Usable Unusable

Athletic Industries Belco 35 Ath Extractor
905715 1 Clothes Washer
905716 1 Athletic Industries Belco 35 Athletic Dryer
0

Technology Department
Asset # Quantity Description Usable Unusable
902920 1 Dell Optiplex 380 Desktop Computer 1
700353 1 Apple iPad 4 Tablet 1
400040 1 Elmo TT-02S Document Camera 1
33053 1 Epson Powerlite 108 Projector 1
28627 1 Samsung Chromebook 2 1
51497 1 Epson DS-510 Document Scanner 1
28020 1 Apple iPad 2 Tablet 1
28012 1 Apple iPad 2 Tablet 1
25136 1 Apple iPad 2 Tablet 1

9 2
Transportation Department
Asset # Quantity Description Usable Unusable
51086 1 2009 Ford E150 Cargo Van 1

1

0 1



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat
| 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 A 1 A 12 A 13 A 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31
September 2021
|_Sun | Mon } Tue | Wed | Thu Eri Sat |
1 2 3 4
5 s@|’ 8 9 10 1
12 13 14 |s@ 16 17 18
19 20 21 2 23 24 25
6 27 28 29 30
October 2021
Sun Man | Tue | Wed | Thy Eri_ Sat
1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 1 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 1l@ 11@ 211
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
3l
November 2021
Sun Mon Tue ‘Wed Thu Fri Sat
I 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 ] 10 gl 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 1@ | 5@| *@| ¥
28 29 30
December 2021
Sun Mon Tue ‘Wed Thu Fri Sat
1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 1
12 13 14 15 16 17 @I 18
19 |2 [@]| 2@ 2@| =@ 2@ 25
e e e
26 270 29 29 E 30 31
Mandatory Work Days (5)

Optional Work Days (9)
Annual Leave (10)

Holidays (11)

Early Release Days (5)

Remote Learning Days (5) TBD

Watauga County Schools
2021-2022 School Calendar

August
1013, Mandatory Work Days
16 e First Day of 180 Day Term

September
B s Labor Day Holiday
g £ TTERep—— Early Release/Professional
Development Day for Staff

October
15 i, End of First Quarter
21-22.. veeeeenn....Early Release/

Parent Conferences
November
o Veterans Day Holiday
24, Optional Work Day
25-26. voumisien Thanksgiving Holidays
December
1T veeeennn o EQrlY Release/
End of First Semester
20, .. cesenersns i i Annual Leave
21-24.. <evveenn....Christmas Holidays
27-31 weeeen......Annual Leave
January
K SO Optional Work Day
Ronsan ammiveins Students Return/
Beginning of Second Semester
17 e Optional Work Day/
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
March
10.....c.ceeeeee......End of Third Quarter
April
L T Spring Holidays
20-22..............eevvonnnAnnual Leave
May
24............Last Day of Fourth Quarter/

Second Semester
285 cosnenravaony Mandatory Work Day

26-27,31............. Optional Work Days

30....................Memorial Day Holiday
June

T imemsnaiams Optional Work Days

B.ooooeivveeeiiieeeieeenne. . Annual Leave

**The last day of the 2021-2022 school
year will be an early release day.**

Educating for Productive Citizenship & Life-Long Learning

January 2022
| —Sun 1 Mon ! Tue 1 Wed | Thy Eri Sat_|
1
2 3 . 4 5 3 7 8
9 10 1 12 13 14 15
16 17@ |18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31
February 2022
Sun Mon Tue Wed | Thu Eri Sat
1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 I 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 L]
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28
March 2022
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat
1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 1 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31
April 2022
Sun Mon Tue ‘Wed Thu Fri Sat
I 2
4 5 6 7 8 9
10 1 12 13 14 15 16
17 |a. 19. 1o 1| n 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
May 2022
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat |
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 1 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25‘ 26 . 27 . 28
29 31. 31 .
June 2022
Sun Mon Tue ‘Wed Thu Fri Sat
1 . '®1°@ |
5 6 7 8 9 10 1
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30




HEARINGS BEFORE THE BOARD Policy Code: 1600

The Watauga County Board of Education (the “board”) is guided by generally accepted
standards of fairness in establishing processes for hearings before the board. Given the board's
considerable responsibilities for overseeing the educational program and operations of the
schools, the board also strives to be efﬁc1ent in carrying out its various functions, including
conducting hearings.

Unless other hearing processes are required by law or board policy, the following procedures
will apply in board hearings. The board reserves the right to modify the procedures described in
this policy as necessary in any particular hearing in order to be fair and efficient, in order to meet
legal requirements or for any other reason the board deems sufficient.

1. A hearing will be open to the public unless a closed session is permitted by law.

It is the express policy of the State and this board to make hearings open to the public
except for certain purposes specified in the Open Meetings Law.

Grievance appeals pursuant to policies 4010, Student and Parent Grievance Procedure,
and 7220, Grievance Procedure for Employees, typically will be heard in closed sessions
in order to prevent the disclosure of confidential information. Closed sessions will be
conducted in accordance with policy 1420, Compliance with the Open Meetings Law.

The board will consider requests made by a parent, student, or employee to conduct a
hearing in open session that is permitted by law to be held in closed session. However,
the board will make the final determination of whether a hearing will be held in open or
closed session.

Ll

The superintendent is responsible for providing sufficient notice of the time and place
that a hearing will be held and the nature of the hearing that will be available.

In order to resolve complaints expeditiously, board hearings will be scheduled as
promptly as possible and notice given to the parties. The superintendent should provide
as much notice as is feasible given the particular circumstances. The superintendent shall
provide a copy of this policy and, when possible, specify time limitations on the oral
presentation if different from what is provided in number 5 of this policy.

w

Individual hearings will be held unless the board determines that a group hearing would
be a more effective process for hearing and addressing the matter.

When two or more individuals share the same or a similar concern or are involved in the
same matter to be heard by the board, the board may consider whether to conduct a-group
hearing. The board may consider factors such as generally accepted standards of
fairness, the need for efficiency, and the ability to prevent the disclosure of confidential
information. The board will consider requests for group or individual hearings and will
make the final determination.

e ——————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 1 of 3



Policy Code: 1600
“

4, Unless otherwise required by law, the board may designate a panel of two or more board
members to hear and act on behalf of the board.

The superintendent shall confer with the chairperson of the board to determine whether
the full board or a panel of the board will conduct a hearing. The board also may
establish a panel to hear certain types of appeals, such as student grievances.

5. All parties involved in the hearing may submit written position statements and will be
given the opportunity for a limited oral presentation.

Written statements may be submitted at the hearing or in advance of the hearing unless
otherwise specified. All parties will be given the opportunity to address the board orally
as well. The board may establish time limitations for oral presentations for different
types of hearings or may set the time limitation for a particular hearing. Unless a
different time frame is established in the notice, in applicable board policies, or at the
hearing, each party will be offered 15 minutes to present his or her position to the board.

6. The board may limit oral presentation to be made by the parties themselves; other
witnesses may be excluded.

The board believes that in most instances, permitting the parties to speak before the board
enables a fair presentation of the parties’ positions. The board may designate types of
hearings in which parties may or may not be represented by legal counsel. Any
individual intending to be represented by legal counsel must notify the superintendent in
advance of the hearing so that there will be an opportunity to clarify whether legal
counsel may be used and to provide the superintendent and board the opportunity to be
represented by legal counsel. If necessary, the meeting may be rescheduled to enable the
board and/or superintendent to secure legal counsel for the hearing.

7. Legal rules of evidence do not apply to information considered by the board.

The board may consider any information that a reasonably prudent person would consider
in conducting the serious affairs of a business.

8. In reviewing any appeal of a decision of school personnel, the board will determine
whether the administrative record as a whole provides sufficient evidence to justify the
decision of the superintendent. New evidence will not be permitted unless necessary to
prevent a threat of substantial unfairness.

The board will review the administrative record, including any administrative
proceedings, and will provide an opportunity for the superintendent and the party
contesting the decision to make a limited oral presentation of their positions. The
submission of documentary evidence and presentation of additional witnesses will be
allowed at the discretion of the board.

e ———————————————————————————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 2 of 3



Policy Code: 1600
“.

9. The superintendent is responsible for making a record of the hearing.

The superintendent shall make any record required by law. At a minimum, the board
record will incorporate the administrative record provided to the board for review and
any written documents submitted by the parties. The record also will provide the
decision of the board and the basis for the decision when such information is required or
specified in law or board policy.

Legal References: G.S. 115C-45(c); 143-318.11

Cross References: Discrimination and Harassment Prohibited by Federal Law (policy
4020/7230) Tltle IX Sexual Harassment Grlevance Process (Dolxcv 4036/7237)Diserimination;
pt—and omplain 06e : , Student and Parent
Gmevance Procedure (pohcy 4010), Grlevance Procedure for Employees (policy 7220), Remote
Participation in Board Meetings (policy 2302), Compliance with the Open Meetings Law (policy
1420), Long-Term Suspension, 365-Day Suspension, Expulsion (policy 4353), Requests for
Readmission of Students Suspended for 365 Days or Expelled (policy 4362), Teacher Contracts
(policy 7410), School Administrator Contracts (policy 7425), Classified Personnel: Suspension
and Dismissal (policy 7940), Non-Career Status Teachers: Nonrenewal (policy 7950)

Adopted: November 9, 2015

- Revised: July 11, 2016; (Legal references only));

e ————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 3 of 3



PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT Policy Code: 4002
C e e

The Watauga County Board of Education (the “board”) recognizes the critical role of parents in
the education of their children and in the schools. The board directs school administrators to
develop programs that will promote and support parental involvement in student learning and
achievement at school and at home and encourage successful progress toward graduation. Each
parent is encouraged to learn about the educational program, the educational goals and objectives
of the school system, and his or her own child’s progress. The board also encourages parents to
participate in activities designed by school personnel to involve them, such as parent conferences,
in order to encourage effective communication.

The board directs each principal or designee to develop a parental involvement plan as a part of
the school improvement plan. This plan must include, at a minimum, efforts that meet the
requirements established in this policy. In addition, the plan must include ways to enhance parental
involvement in the following areas:

1. meaningful two-way communication between home and school;
2. promotion of responsible parenting;
3. involvement of parents and guardians in student learning;

4, promotion of volunteering;

5. involvement of parents and guardians in school decisions that affect children and families;
6. parental training;

7. community collaboration; and

8. promotion of student health awareness.

This policy applies to the parents, legal guardians, and legal custodians of students who are under
18 years old and are not married.

A. PARENT COMMUNICATION AND CONFERENCES

The board encourages school personnel to have regular contact with parents for
commendation as well as for notification of concerns. Principals or designees shall plan
for periodic communication with parents. Teachers are responsible for scheduling
conferences with parents. :

The principal or designee shall strive, through oral or written communication or other
means, to include the parents of students identified as at-risk in the implementation and
review of academic and/or behavioral interventions for their children, in accordance with
policy 3405, Students at Risk of Academic Failure.

M
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 1 of 8




Policy Code: 4002
“

The principal or designee shall provide the parent of each student in kindergarten, first, or
second grade with written notification of the student’s reading progress. The notice will
be provided three times a year, following each benchmark assessment and will include: (1)
assessment results, (2) whether the child may not reach reading proficiency by the end of
third grade, and (3) instructional support activities for use at home.

The board encourages the superintendent to work with local business leaders, including the
local chambers of commerce, to encourage employers to adopt as part of their stated
personnel policies time for employees who are parents or guardians to attend conferences
with their child’s teachers.

B. PARENTAL NOTIFICATION

Each principal or designee of a Title I school shall effectively notify parents of all parental
rights and other required information regarding Title I schools and programs, in accordance
with federal law. Parents of students in Title I schools shall receive a copy of the system-
wide Title I parent and family engagement policy (policy 3560) and the school-wide parent
involvement plan.

In addition, annually every building principal or designee shall effectively notify parents
of the following:

1. parental rights related to student records (see policy 4700, Student Records);
2. parental rights related to student surveys (see policy 4720, Surveys of Students);

3. the approximate dates of any non-emergency, invasive physical examination or
screening that is: (a) required as a condition of attendance, (b) administered and
scheduled in advance by the school administration, and (c) not necessary to protect
the immediate health and safety of students;

4. the schedule of pesticide use on school property and their right to request
notification of nonscheduled pesticide use (see policy 9205, Pest Management);

5. student behavior policies, the Code of Student Conduct, and school standards and
rules (see policies in the 4300 series);

6. the permissible use of seclusion and restraint in the schools (see regulation 4302-
R, Rules for Use of Seclusion and Restraint in Schools);

7. policy 432
Nicorimin

9/7311, Bullying and Harassing Behavior Prohibitedpeliey-4015/7225;

S > 5 - - - s

8. policy 4010, Student and Parent Grievance Procedure;

e ——————————————————————————————————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 2 of 8



Policy Code: 4002
“

9. the dates of the system-wide and state-mandated tests that students will be required
to take during that school year, how the results from the tests will be used, and
whether each test is required by the State Board of Education or by the local board;

10.  grading practices that will be followed at the school and, for parents of high school
students, the method of computing the grade point averages that will be used for
determining class rank (see policies 3400, Evaluation of Student Progress and 3450,
Class Rankings);

11.  available opportunities and the enrollment process for students to take advanced
courses and information explaining the value of taking advanced courses;

12. if applicable, that their child will be provided advanced learning opportunities in
mathematics or will be placed in an advanced mathematics course;

13. aclear and concise explanation of the North Carolina testing and accountability
system that includes all information required by federal law;

14.  areport containing information about the school system and each school, including,
but not limited to:

a. the following information both in the aggregate and disaggregated by
category: student achievement, graduation rates, performance on other
school quality and/or student success indicators, the progress of students
toward meeting long-term goals established by the state, student
performance on measures of school climate and safety, and, as available,
the rate of enrollment in post-secondary education;

b. the performance of the school system on academic assessments as compared
to the state as a whole and the performance of each school on academic
assessments as compared to the state and school system as a whole;

c. the percentage and number of students who are
i assessed,
il. assessed using alternate assessments,
ii. involved in preschool and accelerated coursework programs, and
iv. English learners achieving proficiency;
d. the per pupil expenditures of federal, state, and local funds; and
e. teacher qualifications

15.  the grade earned by the school on the most recent annual report card issued for it
by the State Board of Education if the grade was a D or F;

16.  supportive services available to students, including guidance, counseling, and

e ———————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 3 of 8



Policy Code: 4002

e — — —  ———  ——————=

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

health services (see policy 3610, Counseling Program);

information about meningococcal meningitis and influenza, including the causes,
symptoms, and vaccines, how the diseases are spread, and places where parents and
guardians may obtain additional information and vaccinations for their children;

for parents of students in grades 5 through 12, information about cervical cancer,
cervical dysplasia, and human papillomavirus, including the causes and symptoms
of these diseases, how they are transmitted, how they may be prevented by
vaccination, including the benefits and possible side effects of vaccination, and
places parents and guardians may obtain additional information and vaccinations
for their children;

how to reach school officials in emergency situations during non-school hours;

information about and an application form for free and reduced price meals and/or
free milk (see policy 6225, Free and Reduced Price Food Services);

information about the school breakfast program;

information about the availability and location of free summer food service
program meals for students when school is not in session;

for parents of children with disabilities, procedural safeguards (see also policy
4022/7231, Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disabilities);

information on the availability of the asbestos management plan and planned or in-
progress inspections, re-inspections, response actions, and post-response actions,
including periodic re-inspection and surveillance activities;

education rights of homeless students (see policy 4125, Homeless Students);

the content and implementation of the local school wellness policy (see policy
6140, Student Wellness);

their right to take four hours of unpaid leave from their jobs every year in order to
volunteer in their child’s school as stated in G.S. 95-28.3 (see policy 5015, School
Volunteers);

that the school system does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national

origin, sex, disability, or age, and that the school system provides processes for
resolving discrimination and harassment complaints (see policies 4020/7230,
Discrimination and Harassment Prohibited by Federal Law, 1720/4030/7235, Title

IX Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex

4021/7230.Prohibition—Against
Diserimination;-Harassment;-and Bullying;-and 4022/7231, Nondiscrimination on

the Basis of Disabilities);

“

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 4 of 8 -



. Policy Code: 4002
“

29.  that the school system provides equal access to its facilities, programs, and
activities to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth groups (see policy
40204/7230, i i iseritnati

BullyingDiscrimination and Harassment Prohibited by Federal Law); and ,

30.  the availability of and the process for requesting a waiver or reduction of student
fees (see policy 4600, Student Fees).

C. OPPORTUNITIES TO WITHHOLD CONSENT/OPT QUT

As a part of the annual notification described above, parents will be effectively notified
that they may opt out of any of the following:

1. release of student directory information about their child for school purposes or to
outside organizations (see policy 4700, Student Records);

2. release of their child’s name, address, and telephone listing to military recruiters or
institutions of higher education (see policy 4700, Student Records);

3. their child’s participation in curricula related to (a) prevention of sexually
transmitted diseases, including HIV/AIDS; (b) avoidance of out-of-wedlock
pregnancy; or (c) reproductive health and safety education, as provided in policy
3540, Comprehensive Health Education Program. A copy of the materials that will
be used in these curricula will be available in the school media center during the
school year and at other times that the media center is available to the public. To
meet any review periods required by law, materials also may be made available for
review in the central office;

4. their child’s participation in academic or career guidance or personal or social
counseling services of a generic nature offered to groups of students (e.g., peer
relations strategies offered to all sixth graders). However, parental notification and
permission are not required for: (a) short-duration academic, career, personal, or
social guidance and counseling and crisis intervention that is needed to maintain
order, discipline, or a productive learning environment; (b) student-initiated
individual or group counseling targeted at a student’s specific concerns or needs;
and (c) counseling if child abuse or neglect is suspected (see policies 3610,
Counseling Program, and 4240/7312, Child Abuse and Related Threats to Child
Safety);

5. their child’s participation in non-Department of Education-funded surveys
concerning protected topics (see policy 4720, Surveys of Students);

6. their child’s participation in any non-emergency, invasive physical examination or
screening that is: (a) required as a condition of attendance; (b) administered and
scheduled in advance by the school administration; and (c) not necessary to protect

— e e T
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 5 of 8




Policy Code: 4002
L ——— e —— e b

the immediate health and safety of students;

7. the collection, disclosure, or use of their child’s personal information for marketing
purposes (see policy 4720, Surveys of Students); and

8. release of their child’s free and reduced-price meal information to State Medicaid
or State children’s health insurance program (SCHIP).

Any parent or legal guardian who wishes to opt out/withhold consent must do so in writing
after receiving notice. Otherwise, consent to the programs or activities is presumed. After
the annual notification, the school is not required to provide further notice to the parent or
legal guardian as to the manner in which student directory information is used, the
curriculum is provided, or guidance programs are made available.

D. PARENTAL PERMISSION REQUIRED

Written parental permission is required prior to the following activities:

1. the administration of medications to students by employees of the school system
(see policy 6125, Administering Medicines to Students);

2. the release of student records that are not considered directory information, unless
the release is allowed or required by law (see policy 4700, Student Records);

3. off-campus trips;

4. students’ participation in high-impact or high-risk sports or extracurricular
activities, such as football or mountain climbing (see policy 4220, Student
Insurance Program);

5. all decisions or actions as required by the IDEA with regard to providing special
education or related services to students with disabilities (see policy 3520, Special
Education Programs/Rights of Students with Disabilities);

6. certain health services, as required by law;

7. participation in a mental health assessment or mental health services under
circumstances prescribed by federal law;

8. students’ participation in programs or services that provide information about
where to obtain contraceptives or abortion referral services;

9. students’ participation in surveys funded by the Department of Education that are
conducted concerning protected topics (see policy 4720, Surveys of Students);

10.  disclosure of students’ free and reduced price lunch eligibility information or

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 6 of 8



Policy Code: 4002
e —— i

eligibility status; and

11.  students’ independent access to the Internet, as described in policy
3225/4312/7320, Technology Responsible Use.

Legal References: Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. 12101 ef seq.. 28 C.F.R. pt. 35:

Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act, 15 U.S.C. 2641, et seq.; Boy Scouts of America Equal
Access Act, 20 U.S.C. 7905, 34 C.F.R. 108.9; Elementary and Secondary Education Act, as

amended, 20 U.S.C. 6301 et seq., 34 C.F.R. pt. 200; Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act,

20 U.S.C. 1232¢g, 34 C.F.R. pt. 99; PfﬁééﬁQﬁ—&ﬁPupﬂ—l%g—h%sﬁnendmmt—%@—U—S—&l—?-}%h&
GFER—pt—98;-Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, 20 U.S.C. 1400, ef seq.; Asbestos

. - 5 McKmney-Vento Homeless Assistance

Act, 42 U.S.C. 11431, et seq.; -
Lunch Program, 42 U.S.C. 1751 et seq 7 C F. R 210 12= 7 C F. R pt 245 Protec’uon of Pupil
Rights Amendment, 20 U.S.C. 1232h, 34 C.F.R. pt. 98: Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C.
705(20), 794, 34 C.F.R. pt. 104; Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d ef seq.,
34 C.F.R. pt. 100; Title IX of the Educatlon Amendments Act0f 1972, 20 U.S. C 1681 et seq., 34
C.EF.R. pt. 106; Bey-Secouts—¢ al-A 0 :
U.S.C. 7908; G.S. 90 21 1; 95 28 3; llSC-47(47), -47(51), -47(54) -47(58) -81 25 -81 30 -
81.36, -105.41, -109.1, -174.26(d), -307(c), -375.4, -390.2, -391.1, -407.16; State Board of
Education Policies KNEC-002, PRNT-000, TEST-001

Cross References Tltle I Parent and Fam1ly Engagement (pohcy 3560), Pfehrbl{-ieﬂ—ﬁgaiﬂs{

Bu%lymg—@e&tple&@reeeéme—épeheﬁ%ﬁ%%)—&scnmmanon and Harassment Prohlblted by

Federal Law (policy 4020/7230), Title IX Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex (policy
1720/4030/7235), Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disabilities (policy 4022/7231), Student and

Parent Grievance Procedure (policy 4010), Technology Responsible Use (policy
3225/4312/7320), Evaluation of Student Progress (policy 3400), Students at Risk of Academic
Failure (policy 3405), Class Rankings (policy 3450), Special Education Programs/Rights of
Students with Disabilities (policy 3520), Comprehensive Health Education Program (policy 3540),
Counseling Program (policy 3610), Homeless Students (policy 4125), Student Insurance Program
(policy 4220), Child Abuse and Related Threats to Child Safety (policy 4240/7312), Student
Behavior Policies (4300 series), Rules for Use of Seclusion and Restraint in Schools (regulation
4302-R), Bullying and Harassing Behavior Prohibited (policy 4329/7311), Student Fees (policy
4600), Student Records (policy 4700), Surveys of Students (policy 4720), School Volunteers
(policy 5015), Registered Sex Offenders (policy 5022), Administering Medicines to Students
(policy 6125), Student Wellness (policy 6140), Free and Reduced Price Meal Services (policy
6225), Pest Management (policy 9205)

Adopted: July 14,2014

Replaces: Policy 2.04.60, Parental Involvement (in part)

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 7 of 8



- Policy Code: 4002
e

Revised: (Legal references only);

Revised: January 11, 2016; February 13, 2017; February 12, 2018, November 13, 2018; February
10, 2020; August 12, 2020

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 8 of 8




EDUCATION FOR PREGNANT

AND PARENTING STUDENTS Policy Code: 4023
e e  — —— —— —— — — ———————— —————— ———————————————————————————]

The Watauga County Board of Education (the “board”) will provide all pregnant and parenting
students with the same educational instruction as other students or its equivalent. Pregnant and
parenting students will not be discriminated against or excluded from school or from any
program, class or extracurricular activity because they are pregnant or parenting students.
School administrators shall provide assistance and support to encourage pregnant and parenting
students to remain enrolled in school and graduate.

In accordance with state law, school system officials shall use, as needed, supplemental funds
from the At-Risk Student Services allotment to support programs for pregnant and parenting
students. Students who are pregnant or parenting will be given excused absences from school for
pregnancy and related conditions for the length of time the students’ physicians find medically
necessary. These absences include those due to the illness or medical appointment during school
hours of a child of whom the student is the custodial parent. Homework and make-up work will
be made available to pregnant and parenting students to ensure that they have the opportunity to
keep current with assignments and avoid losing course credit because of their absence from
school, and, to the extent necessary, a homebound teacher will be assigned.

Legal References: Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 ef seg..
34 C.E.R. pt. 106; G.S. 115C-375.5

Cross References Tltle IX Nondlscrlmmatlon on the Ba51s of Sex (policy 1720/4030/7235),

Equal Educational

Opportumtles (pollcy 4001) Attendance (pohcy 4400)

Adopted: July 14, 2014, replaces policy 5.05.55

Revised: (Legal references only)

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 1 of 1



TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT -
PROHIBITED CONDUCT AND

REPORTING PROCESS Policy Code: 4035/7236
R R R RRRRRRRa——m—mm2,

The board acknowledges the dignity and worth of all students and employees and strives to create
a safe, orderly, caring, and inviting school environment to facilitate student learning and
achievement. As provided in policy 1720/4030/7235, Title IX Nondiscrimination on the Basis of
Sex, the board will not tolerate sexual harassment in the education program and activities of the
school system. The board takes seriously all reports and formal complaints of sexual harassment.

This Title IX sexual harassment policy specifically prohibits sexual harassment as that term is
defined under Title IX. It provides a process for students, employees, and others to report such
sexual harassment for response by school officials. All incidents of conduct that could constitute
sexual harassment under this policy are to be reported and treated in accordance with this policy,
whether or not the incidents may also constitute violations of other board policies or standards of
conduct.

Individuals who believe they have been subjected to sexual harassment prohibited by this policy
or who have witnessed or have reliable information that another person has been subjected to
sexual harassment prohibited by this policy should use the process provided in Section C of this
policy to report such violations.

The board also provides a grievance process for those who believe they have been victims of sexual
harassment that is designed to achieve prompt and equitable resolution of formal complaints of
sexual harassment through a formal investigation and adjudication of the allegations in the
complaint or through informal resolution processes. The grievance process is provided in policy
1726/4036/7237, Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Process. Affected individuals are
encouraged to report sexual harassment in accordance with the process provided in Section C of
this policy before filing a formal complaint to initiate the grievance process.

A. PROHIBITED BEHAVIOR

Students, school system employees, volunteers, and visitors are expected to behave in a
civil and respectful manner. The board expressly prohibits sexual harassment by students,
employees, board members, volunteers, or visitors. “Visitors” includes parents and other
family members and individuals from the community, as well as vendors, contractors, and
other persons doing business with or performing services for the school system.

Sexual harassment prohibited under Title IX and by this policy is conduct on the basis of
sex occurring in a school system education program or activity that satisfies one or more

of the following:

1. an employee of the school system conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or
service of the school system on an individual’s participation in unwelcome sexual
conduct;

e —————————— e —————————————————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 1 of 11



Policy Code: 4035/7236
L e —— At et it

2. unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive,
and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the
school system’s education program or activities. This determination requires
consideration of all the facts and circumstances, including, but not limited to, the
ages and disability statuses of the harasser and the victim and the number of
individuals involved and their authority;

3. sexual assault including rape, statutory rape, fondling, and incest;

4, dating violence;
5. domestic violence; or
6. stalking.

Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking will be defined in
accordance with applicable law and the definitions will be incorporated into an
administrative regulation developed by the superintendent.

Conduct that satisfies this standard is not sexual harassment for purposes of this policy if
the conduct occurred (1) outside the United States or (2) under circumstances in which the
school system did not have substantial control over both the harasser and the context in
which the harassment occurred.

All references to “sexual harassment” in this policy mean sexual harassment that meets this
definition.

Examples of conduct on the basis of sex that would be considered sexual harassment if the
conduct satisfies the criteria above include, but are not limited to: unwelcome sexual
advances; requests for sexual favors; and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual
nature, such as deliberate, unwelcome touching that has sexual connotations or is of a
sexual nature; suggestions or demands for sexual involvement accompanied by implied or
overt promises of preferential treatment or threats; pressure for sexual activity; continued
or repeated offensive sexual flirtations, advances, or propositions; continued or repeated
verbal remarks about an individual’s body; sexually degrading words used toward an
individual or to describe an individual; sexual assault; sexual violence; the display of
sexually suggestive drawings, objects, pictures, or written materials; posting sexually
suggestive pictures of a person without the person’s consent; and forwarding pornographic
material depicting a classmate or other member of the school community. Acts of verbal,
nonverbal, or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility based on sex or sex-
stereotyping but not involving conduct of a sexual nature may also constitute sexual
harassment.

Conduct that is determined not to meet the definition above may violate other board
policies or established standards of conduct and will be treated accordingly. For example,

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 2 of 11



Policy Code: 4035/7236

conduct that does not meet the definition of Title IX sexual harassment above may
nevertheless violate other board policies, including:

o policy 4329/7311, Bullying and Harassing Behavior Prohibited, prohibiting all
forms of bullying and harassing conduct, including when it consists of unwelcome
conduct of a sexual nature;

o policy 7232, Discrimination and Harassment in the Workplace, prohibiting
harassment in the workplace; or

J policy 4040/7310, Staff-Student Relations, prohibiting romantic or sexual
relationships between employees and students.

Nothing in this policy is intended to limit discipline for violation of other board policies
when appropriate and consistent with law.

"~ B.  DEFINITIONS
The following additional definitions apply in this policy.
1. Report

A report is an oral or written notification that an individual is an alleged or
suspected perpetrator or victim of sexual harassment.

Making a report initiates the interactive process with the complainant described in
Section D.1, below. No disciplinary action will be taken against a respondent for
sexual harassment based on a report alone.

2. Formal Complaint
A formal complaint is a document signed and filed with the Title IX coordinator by
a complainant or signed by the Title IX coordinator alleging sexual harassment
against a respondent and requesting that school officials investigate the
allegation(s). Filing a formal complaint initiates the grievance process set forth in
policy 1726/4036/7237, Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Process.

At the time of filing a formal complaint, a complainant must be participating in or
attempting to participate in the education program or activities of the school system.

3. Complainant

The complainant is the individual(s) who is alleged-to be the victim of conduct that
could constitute sexual harassment.

4, Respondent

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 3 of 11



Policy Code: 4035/7236
e At

The respondent is the individual(s) who has been reported to be the perpetrator of
conduct that could constitute sexual harassment.

5. Grievance Process

Grievance process means the process for investigating and reaching a final
determination of responsibility for a formal complaint of sexual harassment. The
sexual harassment grievance process is set out in policy 1726/4036/7237.

6. Title IX Coordinator

The Title IX coordinator is a school official who is designated to coordinate the
school system’s response to sexual harassment and allegations of sexual
harassment. Contact information for the Title IX coordinator is posted on the
school system’s website and listed in policy 1720/4030/7235, Title IX
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex.

7. Supportive Measures

Supportive measures are non-disciplinary, non-punitive individualized services
offered as appropriate, as reasonably available, and without fee or charge to the
complainant or the respondent before or after the filing of a formal complaint or
where no formal complaint has been filed. Such measures are designed to restore
or preserve equal access to the school system’s education program and activities
without unreasonably burdening the other party, including measures designed to
protect the safety of all parties or the school system’s educational environment, or
deter sexual harassment.

Supportive measures available to the parties include, but are not limited to,
counseling, mental health services referral, extensions of deadlines or other course-
related adjustments, modifications of work or class schedules, escort services,
mutual restrictions on contact between the parties, changes in work locations,
leaves of absence, increased security and monitoring, and other similar measures
determined by school officials to be necessary to protect the safety or educational
or employment activities of a party.

8. Days
Days are calendar days unless specified otherwise.
9. Student(s)
“Student(s)”” means the student and/or the student’s parent or legal guardian unless

the context clearly indicates otherwise. When the complainant or respondent is a
student, references to those terms also include the student’s parent or legal guardian

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 4 of 11



Policy Code: 4035/7236
e e A

unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

10.  Actual Knowledge

“Actual knowledge” means a school employee has notice of sexual harassment or
allegations of sexual harassment.

C. REPORTING SEXUAL HARASSMENT
1. Student Reports

Any student who believes he or she is a victim of sexual harassment occurring in
the school system’s education programs or activities is encouraged to report the
matter to the student’s principal or to the Title IX coordinator. Reports may also
be made to a teacher, counselor, assistant principal, teacher assistant, or any other
school employee. Middle and high school students may also report sexual
harassment through the anonymous tip line, but school officials may be limited in
their ability to respond if the report does not identify the complainant.

2. Mandatory Reporting by School Employees and Board Members
Any employee or member of the board of education who has actual knowledge of
sexual harassment or allegations of sexual harassment occurring in the education
program or any activity of the school system must report that information

immediately to the Title IX coordinator.

Any of the following confers “actual knowledge” and must be reported

immediately:
a. a report of sexual harassment from a student or other person;
b. the employee or board member witnesses conduct that is or reasonably

could be sexual harassment; or

C. the employee or board member discovers evidence of sexual harassment,
such as sexualized graffiti on school property, or otherwise has reliable
information or reason to believe that a student, employee, or other
individual may have been sexually harassed in violation of this policy, even
if no one has reported the sexual harassment.

Employees who observe an incident of harassment are expected to intervene to stop
the conduct in situations in which they have supervisory control over the
perpetrator, and it is safe to do so. An employee with actual knowledge of possible
sexual harassment in violation of this policy who does not promptly report the
conduct and/or take proper action as required by this subsection, or who knowingly
provides false information about the incident, will be subject to disciplinary action,

T T ———
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 5 of 11



Policy Code: 4035/7236
 ————— = R il

up to and including dismissal.

Any doubt about whether particular conduct is possible sexual harassment must be
resolved in favor of reporting the conduct.

The mandatory reporting required by this section is in addition to required reporting
under policies 4040/7310, Student-Staff Relations, and 4240/7312, Child Abuse
and Related Threats to Child Safety, where the conduct at issue requires a report
under either of those policies.

3. Reporting by Others

All other members of the school community are strongly encouraged to report any
act that may constitute an incident of sexual harassment in violation of this policy
to the school principal, the Title IX coordinator, or the superintendent.

4. Content of the Report

To the extent possible, reports should be sufficient to put school officials on notice
of conduct that could constitute sexual harassment. Employees making mandatory
reports should provide as much detail about the alleged sexual harassment as is
known, unless such disclosure would violate law or standards of professional
ethics. Reports, other than mandatory reports by employees, may be made
anonymously, but anonymous reports may limit the school system’s ability to
respond fully if the alleged victim is not identified.

5. Time Period for Making a Report

Reports by students and third parties can be made at any time. During non-business
hours, reports can be made by using the contact information for the Title IX
coordinator provided on the school system’s website and in policy 1720/4030/7235,
Title IX Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex. A report should be made as soon
as possible after disclosure or discovery of the facts giving rise to the report. Delays
in reporting may impair the ability of school officials to investigate and respond to
any subsequent formal complaint.

School employees and board members with actual knowledge of sexual harassment
must report that information immediately, as provided in subsection C.2 above.

D. SCHOOL OFFICIALS’ RESPONSE TO ACTUAL KNOWLEDGE OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

As required to meet the school system’s obligations under Title IX, school officials shall
respond promptly and impartially to actual knowledge of alleged sexual harassment in a
manner that is not deliberately indifferent. A response that is not deliberately indifferent
is one that is not clearly unreasonable in light of the known circumstances and includes, at
a minimum, the provision of supportive measures to the complainant, as described in this

e ———————————————————— e —————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 6 of 11



Policy Code: 4035/7236

e —— e — — — —— ——  — — ———————

section.

Consistent with this duty, school officials shall respond to all reports of conduct that could
constitute sexual harassment in accordance with this section. However, a report alleging
conduct that is not sexual harassment as defined in this policy is not subject to this policy
but may be referred to appropriate school officials as a possible violation of other board
policies.

1.

Title IX Coordinator Initiates Interactive Process with Complainant

Upon receiving a report of alleged sexual harassment, the Title IX coordinator shall
promptly contact the complainant and the complainant’s parent or guardian
confidentially. This contact must occur within three days, excluding weekends,
absent extenuating circumstances. The Title IX coordinator shall also notify the
principal of the report and, if an employee is the complainant or respondent, the
senior human resources official or designee.

When contacting the complainant and parent or guardian, the Title IX coordinator
shall do all of the following during the contact and shall document the same:

a.

b.

offer supportive measures;

consider the complainant’s wishes with respect to supportive measures;

explain that supportive measures are available with or without the filing of
a formal complaint; and

explain the process for filing a formal complaint with the Title IX
coordinator and the response required of the school system when a
complaint is filed, including all the following:

i.

iii.

that a formal complaint will initiate the grievance process described
in policy 1726/4036/7237, Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance
Process;

that a formal complaint may be filed with the Title IX coordinator
in person, by mail, or by electronic mail;

the major steps in the grievance process, including (1) a notice of
the allegations that will be provided to the respondent that includes
identification of the complainant and the allegations made; (2) an
investigation of the allegations of sexual harassment in which both
parties will have opportunity to have an advisor, present witnesses,
review evidence, pose written questions of the other party, and
receive a copy of the investigative report; (3) a decision on
responsibility in which a decision-maker objectively evaluates all

e ——————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 7 of 11



Policy Code: 4035/7236

relevant evidence and determines whether the respondent engaged
in the alleged sexual harassment in violation of this policy; and (4)
the opportunity for either party to appeal the decision:;

iv. the approximate time frame for concluding the grievance process;

\2 that school officials will treat both parties equitably by (1) providing
remedies to the complamant if the respondent is found responsible,
and (2) by not imposing disciplinary sanctions on the respondent
without first following the grievance process set forth:in policy
1726/4036/7237;

Vi. the circumstances under which- a formal complaint might be
~ consolidated with other formal complaints or dismissed; and

vii.  that the Title IX coordinator may have an obligation to initiate the
grievance process in the absence of a formal complaint filed by the
complainant and the time frame in which that decision will be made.

2. Title IX Coordinator Arranges Implementation of Supportive Measures

After considering the complainant’s wishes, the Title IX coordinator shall arrange
the effective implementation of appropriate supportive measures unless, in the
exercise of good judgment, the Title IX coordinator determines that supportive
measures should not be provided. If supportive measures are not provided to the
complainant, the Title IX coordinator shall document why supportive measures
were not provided and why not providing supportive measures is not deliberately
indifferent to known sexual harassment.

If the complainant is a student with a disability, the Title IX coordinator may need
to consult with appropriate school personnel to determine whether adjustments to
the student’s IEP or Section 504 plan are needed to implement any supportive
measures to be provided and/or whether the student’s plan necessitates any
adjustment to the proposed supportive measures.

3. Title IX Coordinator Determines Whether to Sign a Formal Complaint

If the complainant declined to file a formal complaint within the designated time
period following the interactive process described above, the Title IX coordinator

- shall determine on a case-by-case basis whether to sign, i.e., file, a formal complamt
to initiate the grievance process.

The Title IX coordinator should file a formal complaint (1) if the respondent is a
school employee and the complainant is a student; and (2) in other cases where, in
the exercise of good judgment and in consultation with the school attorney as
appropriate, the coordinator determines that a grievance process is necessary to

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 8 of 11



Policy Code: 4035/7236

comply with the obligation not to be deliberately indifferent to known allegations
of sexual harassment. Credibility or merit of the complaint shall not be considered
in making the determination.

A decision by the Title IX coordinator to sign a formal complaint is not to be
construed as supportive of the complainant or in opposition to the respondent or as
an indication of whether the allegations are credible or have merit, or whether there
is evidence sufficient to determine responsibility. Signing a formal complaint does
not make the Title IX coordinator a complainant or party to the complaint nor
relieve the Title IX coordinator from any responsibilities under this policy.

The Title IX coordinator shall document the decision of whether to sign a complaint
and the reasons for that decision.

4. Presumption of Non-responsibility of Respondent and Bar on Disciplinary
Sanctions without Due Process

The respondent identified in any report alleging sexual harassment under this policy
will be presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct until the respondent’s
responsibility is conclusively established through the grievance process outlined in
policy 1726/4036/7237, Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Process.

No disciplinary sanction or other action that is not a supportive measure, including
but not limited to (1) short or long-term suspension, expulsion, or transfer to an
alternative school or program for student-respondents and (2) suspension,
demotion, or dismissal for employee-respondents, may be imposed for a violation
of this policy unless the respondent agrees to a specific disciplinary sanction or
action in an informal resolution or has been determined to be responsible for the
sexual harassment at the conclusion of a grievance process that complies with the
process in policy 1726/4036/7237. An employee-respondent, however, may be
placed on administrative leave during the pendency of the grievance process if
consistent with applicable state and federal laws.

Notwithstanding the limitation just described, respondents are subject to emergency
removal as described in the next paragraph.

5. Emergency Removal of Respondent from School or Employment

Any respondent is subject to removal from the school system’s education program
and activities, or any part of the program or activities, on an emergency basis if a
school-based threat assessment team conducts an individualized safety and risk
analysis and determines that removal is justified because the person poses an
immediate health or safety threat to any person arising from the allegations of
sexual harassment. A removal under this subsection includes a transfer of a student
to an alternative education program consistent with policy 3470/4305, Alternative
Learning Programs/Schools. A schedule change, and/or removing a student from

e ———————————————————————————————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 9 of 11



Policy Code: 4035/7236

“

=

=

an extracurricular activity is also considered a removal under this subsection where
such action would not otherwise constitute a supportive measure.

The emergency removal may take place regardless of whether a formal complaint
has been filed. However, any such removal must be consistent with federal and
state law, including any applicable law protecting the rights of individuals with
disabilities. The respondent shall receive notice of the removal and an opportunity
to challenge the decision in an informal hearing with the superintendent or designee
immediately following the removal.

An employee may be placed on administrative leave with or without pay during the
pendency of the grievance process set out in policy 1726/4036/7237, Title IX
Sexual Harassment Grievance Process, if consistent with state law and in
accordance with any applicable requirements of state law.

The superintendent or designee shall document all emergency removal decisions
under this subsection, including the immediate threat to health or safety that
justified the removal.

6. Supportive Measures

Supportive measures will be available to both the complainant and respondent
before or after the filing of a formal complaint or where no formal complaint has
been filed. Supportive measures will remain confidential to the extent that
maintaining such confidentiality does not impair the ability to provide the
supportive measures. The Title IX coordinator is responsible for coordinating the
effective implementation of supportive measures.

GRIEVANCE PROCESS FOR FORMAL COMPLAINTS

The grievance process for formal complaints of sexual harassment under this policy is set
out in policy 1726/4036/7237, Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Process. The policy
also provides an informal resolution process for complainants who seek an alternate means
of resolution to their complaint.

As described in subsection D.3 above, the Title IX coordinator may also initiate the
grievance process, as needed.

RECORDS
The Title IX coordinator shall create and maintain for a period of seven years records of
all reports and formal complaints of sexual harassment. For each report or formal

complaint, the coordinator shall document the following:

1. any actions, including any supportive measures, taken in response to the report or
formal complaint;

e ——————————————————————————————————————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 10 of 11



Policy Code: 4035/7236
.“

2. that school officials have taken measures that are designed to restore or preserve
equal access to the school system’s education program and activities;

3. why school officials believe their response to the report or complaint was not
deliberately indifferent; and

4, if supportive measures were not provided to the complainant, why that was not
clearly unreasonable in light of the known circumstances.

In conjunction with the superintendent, the Title IX coordinator shall also maintain for seven years
all materials used to train the Title IX coordinator, investigators, decision-makers, and any person
who facilitates an informal resolution process. These materials will be made publicly available on
the school system’s website.

Legal References: Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq., 34
C.F.R. pt. 106; Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, 524 U.S. 274 (1998); G-S—HS5C-
335:5+-Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education, 526 U.S. 629 (1999);-@&A-en-Campus-Sexual
Miscondt Department—of—Education € ivilRigh 0 available—a

CEEA 40 = O = O 5 3 =

el

Cross References: Title IX Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex (policy 1720/4030/7235), Title
IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Process (policy 1726/4036/7237), Alternative Learning
Programs/Schools (policy 3470/4305), Staff-Student Relations (policy 4040/7310), Child Abuse
and Related Threats to Child Safety (policy 4240/7312), Bullying and Harassing Behavior
Prohibited (policy 4329/7311), Discrimination and Harassment in the Workplace (policy 7232)

Adopted: August 12, 2020

Revised: (Legal references only)

‘m.
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 11 of 11



TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT :
GRIEVANCE PROCESS Policy Code: 4036/7237

The process provided in this policy is designed for those who believe that they have been sexually
harassed in violation of policy1725/4035/7236, Title IX Sexual Harassment — Prohibited Conduct
and Reporting Process, and wish to file a formal complaint. School officials shall follow the
grievance process established in this policy when responding to all formal complaints of sexual
harassment.

The superintendent is responsible for notifying students and their parents or legal guardians,
employees, and applicants for employment of this policy and ensuring that each principal or site
supervisor provides a copy of this policy to these persons.
A. DEFINITIONS
All definitions in policy 1725/4035/7236, Title IX Sexual Harassment — Prohibited
Conduct and Reporting Process, are incorporated by reference and have the same meaning
when used in this policy, including all references to “sexual harassment” in this policy.
The following additional definitions apply in this policy.

1. Investigator

The investigator is the school official responsible for investigating and responding
to a formal complaint.

2. Decision-Maker
The decision-maker is the school official responsible for making a determination
regarding responsibility in response to an investigation of sexual harassment
triggered by a formal complaint.

3. Investigative Report

The investigative report is a written account of the findings of the investigation
conducted in response to a formal complaint.

4.  Remedies
Remedies are individualized measures provided to a complainant designed to
restore or preserve the complainant’s equal access to the education program and
activities of the school system when a respondent is found responsible for sexual

harassment.

Remedial measures available to a complainant following a determination of

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 1 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237

e — ——— ——— ———  — —  ———————— T

B.

responsibility include counseling, mental health services referral, extensions of
deadlines or other course-related adjustments, modifications of work or class
schedules, escort services, mutual or one-way restrictions on contact between the
parties, changes in work locations, leaves of absence, increased security and
monitoring, and other measures determined by school officials to be necessary to
restore or preserve the complainant’s equal access to the education program and
activities, regardless of whether such measures impose a burden on the respondent
or are punitive or disciplinary in nature.

Disciplinary Sanctions

Disciplinary sanctions are consequences imposed on a respondent when the
respondent is found responsible for sexual harassment.

FILING A FORMAL COMPLAINT TO INITIATE THE GRIEVANCE PROCESS

A formal complaint initiates the grievance process.

1.

Individuals Who May File a Formal Complaint
a. Eligible Complainants

Eligible individuals who believe that they have been sexually harassed in
violation of policy 1725/4035/7236, Title IX Sexual Harassment —
Prohibited Conduct and Reporting Process, may initiate the grievance
process for alleged sexual harassment by filing a formal written complaint
with the Title IX coordinator. To be eligible to file a formal written
complaint, the complainant must be participating in or attempting to
participate in the education program or activities of the school system at the
time of filing.

b. The Title IX Coordinator

If the complainant does not wish to file a formal complaint and the matter
has not been adequately resolved through the provision of supportive
measures, the Title IX coordinator may initiate the grievance process by
signing a formal complaint. In accordance with law, only the complainant
and the Title IX coordinator may initiate the grievance process; no other
individuals or school officials shall have authority to do so.

Time Period for Filing a Formal Complaint
There is no deadline for filing a complaint. A complaint should be filed as soon as
possible after the conduct occurs, preferably within 30 days after the complainant

becomes aware of the alleged sexual harassment, unless the conduct forming the
basis for the complaint is ongoing. School officials will initiate the grievance

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 2 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237
e e i

process regardless of when the formal complaint is submitted, but delays in
reporting may significantly impair the ability of school officials to investigate and
respond to the allegations.

In addition, in some circumstances it may be necessary for the Title IX coordinator
to sign a formal complaint to initiate the grievance process in order to meet the
school system’s legal obligations when the coordinator is aware of sexual
harassment or alleged sexual harassment and the complainant has not yet filed a
formal complaint. The Title IX coordinator can do so at any time.

3. Contents of the Formal Complaint

The complaint should (1) contain the name and address of the complainant and the
student’s parent or guardian if the complainant is a minor student, (2) describe the
alleged sexual harassment, (3) request an investigation of the matter, and (4) be
signed by the complainant or otherwise indicate that the complainant is the person
filing the complaint.

4. How to File the Formal Complaint

The complaint may be filed with the Title IX coordinator in person, by mail, or by
email. Complaint forms may be obtained from the Title IX coordinator or on the
school system website.

S. School System’s Respbnse to Receipt of the Formal Complaint

a. Upon receipt of a formal complaint of sexual harassment, the Title IX
coordinator shall engage in an interactive process with the complainant,
consider the provision of supportive measures in light of the complainant’s
wishes, provide supportive measures as appropriate, and otherwise fulfill
the requirements of Section D of policy 1725/4035/7236, Title IX Sexual
Harassment — Prohibited Conduct and Reporting Process, unless the Title
IX coordinator has already done so in response to an initial report of the
same allegation of sexual harassment.

b. School officials reserve the right to consolidate formal complaints against
more than one respondent, or by more than one complainant against one or
more respondents, or by one party against the other party, where the
allegations of sexual harassment arise out of the same facts or
circumstances. The Title IX coordinator shall advise the complainant if the
formal complaint will be consolidated with others.

C. The formal complaint initiates the grievance process as described below.

C. GENERAL PRINCIPLES OF THE GRIEVANCE PROCESS FOR FORMAL COMPLAINTS

e —————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 3 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237

%

To ensure a complete, thorough, and fair grievance process for formal complaints of sexual
harassment, school officials responsible for the investigation, adjudication, or appeal of a
formal complaint of sexual harassment shall comply with the following requirements.
Failure by any school official to comply with these requirements or other standards or
procedures established in this policy is cause for disciplinary action.

1.

Equitable Treatment

Complainants and respondents must be treated equitably throughout the grievance
process. Relevant evidence collected in the investigation of a formal complaint
must be evaluated objectively. No individual designated as a Title IX coordinator,
investigator, decision-maker, or appeal decision-maker will have a conflict of
interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents generally or an individual
complainant or respondent. Credibility determinations will not be based on a
person’s status as a complainant, respondent, or witness.

The complainant and respondent shall be provided an equal opportunity to have
others present during any grievance proceeding, including the opportunity to be
accompanied to any related meeting or proceeding by the advisor of their choice,
who may be an attorney. If a party elects to be represented by an attorney, the party
should notify school officials in advance so that an attorney for the school system
may also be present. Any restrictions on advisor participation in any proceeding
must be applied equally to both parties. :

The complainant and respondent will both be provided a description of the range
of supportive measures available to them.

Adequate Training

The Title IX coordinator, and all persons serving as Title IX investigators, decision-
makers, or appeal decision-makers shall receive training on what constitutes sexual
harassment, the scope of the school system’s education program and activities, how
to conduct an investigation and grievance process, and how to serve impartially,
including by avoiding prejudgment of the facts at issue, conflicts of interest, and
bias. Decision-makers will be trained on any technology to be used at a live hearing
and on issues of relevance of questions and evidence.

Materials used to train coordinators, investigators, decision-makers, and appeal
decision-makers will not rely on sex stereotypes and shall promote impartial
investigations and adjudications of sexual harassment. Copyright restrictions will
be taken into consideration in selecting training materials in order to comply with
the school system’s legal obligation to make all training materials available on the
school system’s website.

Presumption of Non-Responsibility/Innocence

~

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 4 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237
\‘

Atall times prior to a determination regarding responsibility by the decision-maker,
there will be a presumption that the respondent is not responsible for the alleged
conduct.

4, Burden of Proof and Production of Evidence

- The burden of proof and the burden of gathering evidence sufficient to reach a
determination regarding responsibility will at all times rest on the school system
and not on the complainant or respondent. Formal rules of evidence shall not apply
in the grievance process.

5. Written Notice of Meetings and Other Proceedings

Parties whose participation is invited or expected at any hearing, investigative
interview, or other meeting will be provided written notice of the event’s date, time,
location, participants, and purpose with sufficient time for the party to prepare to
participate.

6. Confidentiality and Privacy

The school system will keep confidential the identity of any individual who has
made -a report or formal complaint of sexual harassment, any complainant, any
respondent, and any witness, except as may be permitted by FERPA, as required
by law, or as necessary to carry out a Title IX proceeding. A violation of this
provision may constitute retaliation.

All meetings, hearings, or other proceeding conducted pursuant to this policy will
be private except to the extent that the parties are permitted to be accompanied by
others as provided in subsection C.1 above.

School officials shall not access, consider, disclose, or otherwise use a party’s
medical, mental health, or other records that are made or maintained by a
professional or paraprofessional in connection with the provision of treatment to
the party without the party’s voluntary written consent.

7. No Disclosure of Privileged Information
No person acting on behalf of the school system shall require, allow, rely upon, or
otherwise use questions or evidence that constitute, or seek disclosure of,
information protected under a legally recognized privilege, unless the person
holding such privilege has waived the privilege.

8. Timeliness of Process

School officials shall make a good faith effort to conduct a fair, impartial grievance
process in a timely manner designed to provide all parties with a prompt and

e ————————————————————————————————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 5 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237

1——_—_——

equitable resolution. It is expected that in most cases, the grievance process will
be concluded through the adjudication phase within 90 days after filing the formal
complaint. The board reserves the right to extend this time frame or any deadline
contained in this policy for good cause with written notice to the parties of the delay
and the reason for the delay. Good cause may include but is not limited to the
absence of the parties or witnesses, concurrent law enforcement activity, or the need
for language assistance or accommodation of disabilities.

The Title IX coordinator or other responsible school official shall make reasonable
efforts to keep the complainant and respondent apprised of progress being made
during any period of delay.

D. THE GRIEVANCE PROCESS FOR FORMAL COMPLAINTS: PART I — INVESTIGATION

1. Step 1 — Notice of Allegations

a. Upon the filing of a formal complaint, the Title IX coordinator shall, within
five school business days, provide the known parties written notice of the
allegations that includes:

i.

iii.

notice of the allegations of sexual harassment in sufficient detail to
permit the parties to prepare a response before any initial interview,
including:

-a) the identities of the parties involved, if known,

b) the conduct allegedly constituting sexual harassment; and
c) the date and location of the alleged incident, if known,;

a copy of this policy to give notice of the school system’s grievance
process, including the investigative and adjudication procedures,
and any informal resolution process available;

notice that the parties may have an advisor of their choice and that
either party may inspect and review any evidence;

notice of the provision in board policy 4340, School-Level
Investigations, that prohibits students and employees from
knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting false
information during the grievance process; and

a statement that the respondent is presumed not responsible for the
alleged conduct and that a determination regarding responsibility
will be made at the conclusion of the grievance process.

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 6 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237
L ——— = ettt i

b. If during the investigation, the investigator decides to investigate allegations
of sexual harassment not included in the initial notice provided above,
notice of the additional allegations will be provided to the parties.

2. Step 2 — Review Grounds for Dismissal of the Formal Complaint

The Title IX coordinator shall review the allegations and determine whether the
formal complaint must be dismissed without further investigation because the
conduct alleged in the formal complaint, even if assumed true, would not constitute
sexual harassment as defined in this policy, did not occur in the school system’s
education program or activities, or did not occur against a person in the United
States. Such a dismissal does not preclude action under another provision of the
Code of Student Conduct, board policy, or expected standards of employee "
behavior. The complaint will not be dismissed at this stage on the basis that the
allegations are frivolous, without merit, or otherwise unfounded.

Upon a dismissal, the Title IX coordinator must promptly send written notice of the
dismissal and reason(s) therefor simultaneously to the parties. The parties have the
right to appeal the decision as provided in Section F.

The Title IX coordinator shall refer the matter that was the subject of the dismissed
complaint to the principal for further action as warranted.

3. Step 3 — Initiating the Investigation

If the complaint may proceed, the Title IX coordinator shall notify the appropriate
investigator, who shall investigate the formal complaint.

a. In order to provide a neutral and objective investigation, the investigator

- shall not be a party to the complaint under investigation. The investigator

of a formal complaint is ordinarily determined as described below;

however, the Title IX coordinator, in consultation with the superintendent,

may determine that conflict of interest, bias, or other individual
circumstances warrant the assignment of a different investigator.

i If the respondent is a student, the investigator is the principal or
designee of the school with jurisdiction over the incident.

C i, If the respondent is an employee or applicant for employment, the
investigator is the senior human resources official or designee.

iii. If the respondent is neither a student nor an employee/applicant for
employment, the principal of the school/site supervisor at which the
complainant is enrolled or employed shall be the investigator.

iv. Notwithstanding the above designations, (1) if the respondent is the

—————————————————————————————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 7 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237
L D 00— M1

senior human resources official, the superintendent shall investigate
the complaint; (2) if the respondent is the superintendent or a
member of the board, the Title IX coordinator shall immediately
notify the board chair who shall direct the board attorney to
investigate, unless the board chair determines that outside counsel
should be engaged to investigate.

b. The investigator may request assistance from the Title IX coordinator to
conduct the investigation.

C. The Title IX coordinator and the investigator shall jointly assess the need
for supportive measures for either party, including assessing the
effectiveness of any supportive measures currently being provided to the
complainant, and, as necessary, will implement appropriate measures in a
timely manner and monitor the effectiveness of the measures during the
pendency of the investigation and prior to a final determination regarding
responsibility.  Supportive measures provided to the complainant or
respondent will be maintained as confidential to the extent that maintaining
such confidentiality does not impair the ability to provide the supportive
measures.

d. The investigator shall explain the process of the investigation to the
complainant and respondent.

4. Step 4 — Conducting the Investigation

The investigator is responsible for gathering evidence sufficient to reach a
determination of whether the allegations in the formal complaint are true and
whether the facts as determined by the investigator establish that sexual harassment
as defined in this policy occurred. In so doing, the investigator shall impartially,
promptly, and thoroughly investigate the complaint.

a. The investigator shall interview all individuals who may have relevant
information, including (1) the complainant; (2) the respondent; (3)
individuals identified as witnesses by the complainant or respondent; and
(4) any other individuals who are thought possibly to have relevant
information. Prior written notice shall be provided to a party whose
participation is invited or expected for any investigative interview or
meeting in accordance with subsection C.5 above. The investigator shall
provide the complainant and respondent an equal opportunity to present fact
and expert witnesses and other evidence tending to prove or disprove the
allegations.

b. The investigator shall ensure that the burden of gathering evidence
sufficient to reach a determination regarding responsibility rests on the
school system and not on the complainant or respondent.

e ——re——————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 8 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237
e A

c. The investigator shall not restrict the ability of either party to gather and
present relevant evidence or to discuss the allegations under investigation.

d. The formal complaint and the investigation will be kept confidential to the
extent possible. Information may be shared only with individuals who need
the information in order to investigate and address the complaint
appropriately and those with a legal right to access the information. Any
requests by the complainant or respondent for further confidentiality will be
evaluated within the context of the legal responsibilities of the school
system.

The investigator may, with approval of the Title IX coordinator, dismiss the formal
complaint or any allegations therein if at any time during the investigation or
decision-making process: (1) the complainant notifies the Title IX coordinator in
writing that he or she would like to withdraw the formal complaint or any
allegations therein; (2) the respondent is no longer enrolled or employed by the
school system; or (3) specific circumstances prevent school officials from gathering
evidence sufficient to reach a determination as to the formal complaint or
allegations therein. Upon dismissal, the Title IX coordinator shall promptly send
written notice of the dismissal and reason(s) therefor simultaneously to the parties.
The parties have the right to appeal the decision as provided in Section F.

The investigator may consider the matter that was the subject of the dismissed
complaint for action in accordance with board policy for violation of other expected
standards of student or employee behavior.

5. Step 5 — Investigative Report and Opportunity to Review Evidence

a. The investigator shall prepare an investigative report that fairly summarizes
the relevant evidence.

b. Before completing the final report, the investigator shall send to each party
and the party’s advisor, if any, in hard copy or electronically, all the
evidence collected which is directly related to the allegations raised in the
formal complaint. The parties shall have 10 days to submit a written
response for the investigator’s consideration before the investigator
finalizes the investigative report.

C. Following the parties’ opportunity to respond to the written evidence, the
investigator shall finalize the written investigative report, including a
recommendation on the question of responsibility and any recommended
discipline sanction.

d. The investigator shall provide a copy of the report to each party and the
party’s advisor, if any, for their review and written response. The

e ————————————————————————————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 9 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237
h

investigator shall also notify the parties of the opportunity to submit written
questions to the other party and witnesses as provided in subsection E.2
below. The parties shall have 10 days to provide a written response to the
investigative report, along with the party’s initial set of written questions.

e. The investigator shall provide to the decision-maker a copy of the
investigative report, the relevant evidence, and the parties’ written
responses to the report and initial sets of written questions.

The investigator shall also provide a description of the procedural steps
taken, starting with the receipt of the formal complaint and continuing
through the preparation of the investigative report, and including any
notifications to the parties, interviews with parties and witnesses, site visits,
and methods used to gather other evidence. '

E. THE GRIEVANCE PROCESS FOR FORMAL COMPLAINTS: PART II — ADJUDICATION

The superintendent or designee (hereinafter “superintendent”) shall serve as the decision-
maker. In his or her role as decision-maker, the superintendent shall provide for the
exchange of questions between the parties and a decision on responsibility in a manner
consistent with state law and as provided below.

1. Step 1 — Student’s Opportunity to Request a Hearing

In cases where the respondent is a student, after the investigative report has been
sent to the parties, both parties shall have three school business days to request a
hearing. If either party requests a hearing, the long-term suspension hearing
procedures described in policy 4370, Student Discipline Hearing Procedures, shall
be followed, except that (1) both parties shall have the right to participate in the
hearing to the extent required by Title IX; (2) all the evidence sent to the parties
pursuant to subsection D.5.b above will be made available at the hearing to give
each party equal opportunity to refer to such evidence during the hearing; and (3)
prior to the hearing, both parties shall have a limited opportunity to submit and
respond to written questions and follow-up questions as provided below.

2. Step 2 — Exchange of Questions and Answers

Whether or not there will be a hearing and regardless of whether the respondent is
a student, after the parties are sent the investigative report, the superintendent shall
provide the parties an opportunity to submit written, relevant questions that the
party wants asked of any other party or witness, provide each party with the
answers, and allow for additional, limited follow-up questions from each party in
accordance with a reasonably prompt time frame established by the superintendent.
The parties shall submit their initial set of written questions at the time they submit
their response to the investigative report as described in subsection D.5.d above.

et ——
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 10 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237
-/ O

a. Questions and evidence about the complainant’s sexual predisposition or
prior sexual behavior will be considered not relevant, unless such questions
and evidence about the complainant’s prior sexual behavior are offered to
prove that someone other than the respondent committed the conduct
alleged by the complainant, or if the questions and evidence concern
specific incidents of the complainant’s sexual behavior with respect to the
respondent and is offered to prove consent.

b. The superintendent must explain to the party proposing the questions any
decision to exclude questions as not relevant.

3. Step 3 — Decision on the Question Regarding Responsibility

Following the exchange of questions and/or hearing as described above, the
superintendent shall decide the question regarding responsibility, any disciplinary
action, and any other measures the superintendent deems appropriate. The
superintendent shall consider all the relevant evidence objectively, including
evidence in the investigative report, any testimony of witnesses at the hearing, if
one was held, and any additional information provided by the parties through the
exchange of questions and responses as provided in subsection E.2 above.

Based on an objective evaluation of the evidence, the superintendent shall
determine whether the preponderance of the evidence supports a finding that the
respondent is responsible for sexual harassment in violation of board policy, and if
so, what disciplinary sanction will be imposed. Remedies will be provided to the
complainant if the respondent is found responsible.

4. Step 4 — Written Determination Regarding Responsibility

The superintendent shall issue a written determination regarding responsibility
simultaneously to both parties that includes:

a. identification of the allegations potentially constituting sexual harassment
under board policy;

b. a description of the procedural steps taken from the receipt of the formal
complaint through the determination, including any notifications to the
parties, interviews with parties and witnesses, site visits, methods used to
gather other evidence, and hearings held;

c. findings of fact supporting the determination;

d. conclusions regarding the application of board policy and/or the Code of
Student Conduct or expected standards of employee behavior to the facts
including whether, the respondent engaged in prohibited sexual harassment
or other proscribed conduct;

m
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 11 of 18




Policy Code: 4036/7237

e. a statement of, and rationale for, the result as to each allegation, including
a determination regarding responsibility, any disciplinary sanctions
imposed on the respondent (which may be a recommendation to the board
for discipline that is beyond the authority of the superintendent or other
decision-maker), and whether remedies designed to restore or preserve
equal access to the school system’s education program and activities will be
provided to the complainant;

f. the procedures and permissible bases for the complainant and respondent to
appeal; and
g. any other notices that are required to accompany the decision under state

law, such as when the superintendent imposes a long-term suspension or
recommends dismissal of an employee.

F. GRIEVANCE PROCESS FOR FORMAL COMPLAINTS: PART III - APPEAL

The parties shall have the right to appeal to the board of education the determination
regarding responsibility, the outcome of any disciplinary proceeding, and any dismissal of
a formal complaint or any allegations therein. If a party appeals both the determination
regarding responsibility and the outcome of a disciplinary proceeding, both matters will be
heard by the board at the same time. If both parties appeal, the appeals will be heard at the
same time.

1. Deadline and Grounds for Appeal

Either party may appeal by submitting a request in writing to the superintendent
within three school business days of receiving the determination regarding
responsibility, unless the party is entitled to a longer appeal period under state law
or board policy. Any longer appeal period applicable to one party shall apply
equally to the other party. The grounds for appeal may be any of the following:

a. procedural irregularity that affected the outcome of the matter;

b. new evidence that was not reasonably available at the time the
determination regarding responsibility or dismissal was made, that could
affect the outcome of the matter;

c. the Title IX coordinator, investigator, or decision-maker had a conflict of
interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents generally or the
individual complainant or respondent that affected the outcome of the
matter;

d. the disciplinary sanction is inappropriate or unreasonable; or

e a——————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 12 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237

e. any other basis provided by law or board policy governing appeals to the
board.

2. Notice of the Appeal

In all appeals, the other party will be notified in writing when an appeal is filed and
be provided a copy of the appeal.

3. Appeal Procedures

a. The board will hear the appeal. Unless otherwise required by law, the board
may designate a panel of two or more board members to hear and act on
behalf of the board.

b. Appeal procedures will be implemented equally for both parties and will
follow the procedures in policy 2500, Hearings Before the Board, modified
as necessary to allow equal participation of the parties.

If the appeal includes an appeal of a disciplinary sanction, the procedures in
policy 4370, Student Discipline Hearing Procedures; policy 7940,
Classified Personnel: Suspension and Dismissal; or policy 7930,
Professional Employees: Demotion and Dismissal, shall also apply as
applicable.

C. After the notice of appeal is provided, both parties will be given 10 days to
submit a written statement in support of, or challenging; the outcome. If the
basis of the appeal is newly available evidence affecting the outcome, the
party shall submit such evidence or a summary of such evidence along with
the party’s written statement.

d. The board will review the record and the written argument of the parties

. submitted on appeal, determine whether additional information is needed

from any party, and take any other steps that the board determines to be
appropriate in order to respond to the appeal.

4. Decision on Appeal

a. After considering the record and written statements of the parties, the board
will determine whether the grounds for the appeal have been substantiated.

b. If substantiated, the board will determine the appropriate response, which
may include a remand for a new investigation, a new decision, or both, or
such other action as the board determines is needed to correct the error in
the original proceedings.

c. The board will provide a written decision describing the results of the appeal

e ————————————————————————————————————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 13 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237
“

and rationale for the result within thirty days after receiving the appeal
unless the decision is delayed for good cause. The written decision will be
provided simultaneously to both parties.

5. When the Decision Becomes Final

If an appeal is timely filed, the determination regarding responsibility becomes final
at the conclusion of the appeal process. However, if the decision on appeal is
remand, the determination regarding responsibility does not become final until that
process, including any appeal of the proceedings on remand, is concluded. If an
appeal is not filed, the determination regarding responsibility becomes final after
the three-day appeal period.

The superintendent shall ensure that a copy of the final decision is provided to the
Title IX coordinator and shall confer with the Title IX coordinator regarding any
remedies to be provided to the complainant, as described in subsection G.4 below.

G. DISCIPLINARY CONSEQUENCES, REMEDIES, AND OTHER RESPONSES FOR
SUBSTANTIATED SEXUAL HARASSMENT

1. Disciplinary Consequences for Students

Disciplinary consequences for substantiated sexual harassment will be assigned in
accordance with the Code of Student Conduct. Based on the nature and severity of
the offense and the circumstances surrounding the incident, the student will be
subject to appropriate consequences and remedial actions ranging from positive
behavioral interventions up to, and including, expulsion. In addition, the conduct
also may be reported to law enforcement, as appropriate.

A student recommended for a long-term suspension or expulsion will have all
applicable rights accorded by board policy and state law. A student with disabilities
will have all rights accorded by law, including the right to a manifestation hearing
before the imposition of a suspension exceeding 10 cumulative days in a school
year.

This policy will not be construed to allow school officials to punish student
expression or speech based on undifferentiated fear or apprehension of a
disturbance or out of a desire to avoid the discomfort and unpleasantness that may
accompany an unpopular viewpoint. However, false or malicious complaints of
sexual harassment and false statements made in bad faith in the course of any
grievance proceeding conducted pursuant to this policy are subject to disciplinary
action.

Nothing in this policy will preclude the school system from taking disciplinary
action against a student when the evidence does not establish sexual harassment as
defined in this policy but the conduct violates other board policy and/or the Code

e —————————————————————————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL ‘Page 14 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237
“

of Student Conduct.
2. Disciplinary Consequences for Employees

Substantiated sexual harassment by employees is subject to discipline up to and
including dismissal. In addition, the conduct may also be reported to law
enforcement, as appropriate.

An employee recommended for suspension, demotion, or dismissal shall have all
applicable rights accorded by board policy and state law.

Nothing in this policy will preclude the school system from taking disciplinary
action against an employee when the evidence does not establish sexual harassment
as defined in this policy, but the conduct violates other board policy or expected
standards of employee behavior. '

3. Consequences for Other Perpetrators

Volunteers and visitors who engage in sexual harassment will be directed to leave
school property and/or be reported to law enforcement, as appropriate, in
accordance with policy 5020, Visitors to the Schools. A third party under the
supervision and control of the school system will be subject to termination of
contracts/agreements, restricted from access to school property, and/or subject to
other consequences, as appropriate. Nothing in this policy will be construed to
confer on any third party a right to due process or other proceedings to which
student and employee respondents are entitled under this policy unless such right
exists under law.

4, Remedies

At the conclusion of the grievance process, the superintendent or other decision-
maker shall confer with the Title IX coordinator to determine the remedies to be
provided to the complainant when the respondent is found responsible for sexual
harassment. The Title IX coordinator shall consult with the complainant in
determining appropriate remedies.

The Title IX coordinator shall be responsible for the effective implementation of
the remedies to be provided to the complainant.

5. Consideration of Need for More Extensive Response

If the superintendent determines that a school-wide or system-wide response is
needed in order to respond to the sexual harassment in a way that is not clearly
unreasonable under the circumstances, the superintendent shall provide additional
staff training, harassment prevention programs, or such other measures as
determined appropriate to protect the safety of the educational environment and/or

T ——
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 15 of 18




Policy Code: 4036/7237
. A

to deter sexual harassment.

|

INFORMAL RESOLUTION

The board provides informal resolution processes to resolve some formal complaints of
sexual harassment without a full investigation and adjudication. Informal resolution is not
available unless a formal complaint is filed and will not be used to resolve formal
complaints alleging that an employee sexually harassed a student. Further, school officials
shall never condition an individual’s enrollment, employment, or other rights on an
agreement to waive the individual’s right to a formal investigation and adjudication of a
formal complaint.

The Title IX coordinator, or other school official in consultation with the Title IX
coordinator, may offer the parties an informal process to resolve a formal complaint at any
time prior to reaching a final determination regarding responsibility. Before using an
informal resolution process, school officials must ensure that both parties have given
voluntary, informed, written consent to attempt informal resolution. Accordingly, the Title
IX coordinator, investigator, or decision-maker shall:

1. provide the parties (including the parent of a minor) a written notice disclosing:
a. the allegations;

b. the nature and requirements of the informal resolution process, including
that if the parties agree to a resolution of the matter, the agreement precludes
either party from resuming a formal complaint process arising from the
same allegations; and

c.  any consequences that could result from participating in the informal
resolution process, including whether records will be maintained and could
be shared; and

2. obtain the parties’ voluntary, written consent to the informal resolution process.

Any agreement reached by the parties through informal resolution may include measures
that are designed to restore or preserve the parties’ equal access to the education program
and activities, including measures that may be punitive or disciplinary in nature.

Any informal process should be completed within a reasonable period of time, not to
exceed 60 days from filing the complaint unless special circumstances necessitate more
time. At any time prior to agreeing to a resolution, any party has the right to withdraw
from the informal resolution process and resume the grievance process with respect to the
formal complaint.

et
.

RETALIATION PROHIBITED

e ——————————————————————————————————————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 16 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237
“

Any act of retaliation or discrimination against any person for the purpose of interfering
with any right or privilege secured by Title IX or because the person has made a report or
filed a formal complaint or testified, assisted, or participated or refused to participate in
any investigation, proceeding, or hearing involving sexual harassment is prohibited. Any
person who is found to have engaged in retaliation will be subject to discipline, up to and
including dismissal. Acts of retaliation -may also be subject to policy 1760/7280,
Prohibition Against Retaliation.

Complaints alleging retaliation are to be treated as claims of sex discrimination and may
be filed in accordance with policy 1720/4030/7235, Title IX Nondiscrimination on the
Basis of Sex.

J. RECORDS

The superintendent or designee shall maintain for a period of seven years records of the

following:
1. each sexual harassment investigation including:
a. any determination regarding responsibility;
b. any audio or audiovisual recording or transcript from any live hearing;
c. any disciplinary sanctions imposed on the respondent; and
d. any remedies provided to the complainant designed to restore or preserve
equal access to the school system’s education program and activities;
2. any appeal and the result therefrom;
3. any informal resolution and the result therefrom; and
| 4. in conjunction with the Title IX coordinator, all materials used to train Title IX

coordinators, investigators, decision-makers, and any person who facilitates an
informal resolution process. These materials will be made publicly available on the
school system’s website.

Legal References: Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. 1232g; Title IX of the
Education Amendments Act of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq., 34 C.F.R. pt. 106; Gebser v. Lago
Vista Independent School District, 524 U.S. 274 (1998); Davis v. Monroe County Board of
Education, 526 U.S. 629 (1999); O&A on Campus Sexual Misconduct, U.S. Department of
Education, Office for Civil Rights ~ (2017), available at
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/qa-title-ix-201709.pdf; Dear—Colleague—Letter

nord a Dapnar O
c O O

ada
ZCTOO

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 17 of 18



Policy Code: 4036/7237

Cross References: Title IX Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex (policy 1720/4030/7235), Title
IX Sexual Harassment — Prohibited Conduct and Reporting Process (policy 1725/4035/7236),
Prohibition Against Retaliation (policy 1760/7280), Hearings Before the Board (policy 2500),
School-Level Investigations (policy 4340), Student Discipline Hearing Procedures (policy 4370),
Visitors to the Schools (policy 5020), Discrimination and Harassment in the Workplace (policy
7232), Professional Employees: Demotion and Dismissal (policy 7930), Classified Personnel:
Suspension and Dismissal (policy 7940)

Adopted: August 12, 2020

Revised: (Legal references only)

e ——————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 18 of 18



SERVICE ANIMALS IN SCHOOLS Policy Code:  4202/5029/7272

The Watauga County Board of Education (the “board”) will make reasonable accommodations for
qualified persons with disabilities in accordance with policy 4022, Nondiscrimination on the Basis
of Disabilities, and the requirements of state and federal law. An individual with a disability may
be accompanied by his or her service animal on school property subject to the requirements of this
policy. If necessary, the superintendent may establish administrative regulations for the use of
service animals on school property.

A.

=

DEFINITION OF “SERVICE ANIMAL”

A “service animal” for purposes of this policy is any dog that has been individually trained
to do work or perform tasks for the benefit of an individual with a disability, including, but
not limited to, a physical, sensory, psychiatric, intellectual, or other mental disability.
Federal regulation 28 C.F.R. 35.104 provides examples of types of work or tasks that would
qualify. The work or tasks performed by a service animal must be directly related to the
individual’s disability or necessary to mitigate a disability. Service animals do not include
any other species of animal, whether wild or domestic, trained or untrained, except that a
miniature horse will be permitted for use as a service animal if reasonable modifications
can be made after assessing the specific factors listed in 28 C.F.R. 35.136(i). Animals
whose sole function is to provide emotional support, well-being, comfort, companionship
or therapeutic benefits or to act as a crime deterrent are not service animals for the purposes
of this policy.

USE OF A SERVICE ANIMAL ON SCHOOL PROPERTY BY STUDENTS AND EMPLOYEES
1. Introduction of a Service Animal

School administrators shall facilitate the introduction of an eligible service animal
into the school environment. To promote a successful integration of the service
animal into the educational program and to minimize unnecessary disruption, an
employee or student with a disability who intends to bring a service animal to
school during the school day is encouraged to follow these guidelines.

a. The employee, student or student’s parent should notify the superintendent
and the principal of the applicable school in writing at least 10 work days
prior to the date proposed to bring the service animal onto school property.

b. The employee, student or student’s parent should work with school
personnel to create a plan addressing the presence of the service animal
during the school day. A plan to integrate a service animal into the school
environment should include the following:

1) appropriate training for school personnel and students regarding
interaction with the service animal;

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 1 of 4



Policy Code:  4202/5029/7272

.“

2) arrangements for meeting the service animal’s basic needs during
the school day
3) any necessary modifications to the educational program so that the

employee or student with a disability may be accompanied by the
service animal; and

4) when necessary, provisions for the presence of a handler other than
the employee or student with the disability to control or care for the
service animal.

c. It is recommended, but not required, that the service animal be free of
parasites and otherwise in good health. Veterinary records and records of
vaccinations should be made available to the superintendent or designee or
the principal for review.

2. Presence of a Service Animal on School Property

An employee or student with a disability accompanied by a service animal must
meet the following requirements for a service animal to be present on school

property.

a.

A student or employee who elects to be accompanied by a service animal
will be expected to care for and supervise the animal. If a student is not
capable of providing adequate care. and supervision, the parent will be
responsible for providing such care and supervision.

All costs related to the handling and care of the service animal are the
responsibility of the parent/guardian of the student, or of the adult visitor or
staff member who uses the animal.

If a student requires assistance from a parent or handler to control and care
for the service animal while on school property, that individual must submit
to a background screening, which may include a criminal history check in
accordance with state law and any procedures established by the
superintendent.

The service animal must be on a leash or other mechanical restraint at all
times. If mechanical restraint is not feasible due to a student’s disability,
the animal must be under other sufficient means of control.

The service animal must be housebroken, under the control of its handler,
and have received all necessary vaccinations as required by state law.

The principal or designee shall notify all security personnel of the existence and
possible locations of any service animals on school property.

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 2 of 4



Policy Code:  4202/5029/7272
e —————— s i

C. USE OF A SERVICE ANIMAL ON SCHOOL PROPERTY BY SCHOOL VISITORS

A school visitor who is an individual with a disability may be accompanied by a service
animal in accordance with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations and with
policy 5020, Visitors to the Schools. A service animal that is accompanying a school
visitor may be properly excluded from school property for a reason(s) set forth in section
E of this policy.

D. LIABILITY

The board may hold the owner or handler of a service animal liable for any property
damage caused by the animal to the same extent required by other board policy or
administrative rules that impose liability for property damage. In addition, either the owner
or handler, or both may be liable for personal injury caused by the animal or related to the
presence of the animal on school property.

E. EXCLUSION OF A SERVICE ANIMAL FROM SCHOOL PROPERTY

School personnel shall not ask an individual with a disability about the nature or extent of
his or her disability. However, when not readily apparent to school personnel, a principal
or designee may inquire as to whether the animal is required because of a disability and
what work or task the animal has been trained to perform. Such inquiries may be made to
confirm that the dog is a service animal and is rightfully present on school property.

A principal or designee may exclude a service animal from school property for the
following reasons:

1. The animal poses a direct threat to the health or safety of others that cannot be
eliminated by reasonable modifications.

2. The animal is out of control and the animal’s handler does not take effective action
to control it.

3. The animal is not housebroken.

4. The presence or behavior of the animal fundamentally alters the service, program
or activity of the school system.

If a principal or designee excludes a dog or service animal from school property, the
principal or designee must document the reasons for the exclusion and notify the
superintendent. The superintendent or designee will make a determination on whether a
service animal will be allowed to return to the school and, if reasonably possible, notify
the individual with the disability in writing of the decision within five work days of the
initial exclusion.

“
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 3 of 4



: Policy Code:  4202/5029/7272
- — ——— ————  — ——————————————————
If the superintendent determines that an animal does not meet the definition of a service
animal or that a service animal should be excluded for one or more of the reasons described
in this section, the student’s Section 504 or IEP Team shall meet to consider and document
whether the animal’s presence is necessary for the child to receive an appropriate education
or to have equal access to the educational program. If the animal’s presence is not deemed
necessary, the Section 504 or IEP Team will determine whether the child needs other aids

and services or accommodations.

If a service animal is excluded, an individual with a disability will be provided the
opportunity to participate in educational services, programs or activities as required by law
without having the service animal on the premises.

=

APPEAL OF AN EXCLUSION OF A SERVICE ANIMAL EFROM SCHOOL PROPERTY

The superintendent’s decision regarding exclusion of a service animal from school property
1n accordance with thls pollcy may be appealed consistent w1th pollcy—404§-

P—Feeedufe-l—"r’—l()/4020/7230 Dlscnmmatlon and Harassment Prohlblted bv Federal Law

and any other procedure established by the superintendent under policy 4022,
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disabilities.

Legal References: Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. 12101 e seq., 28 C.F.R. pt. 35;
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, 20 U.S.C. 1400 ef seq., Rehabilitation Act of 1973,
29-U.S.C. 705(20), 794, 34 C.F.R. pt. 104; G.S. 130A-185, 168 art. 1, 168A-3 through -7

Cross References Dlscnmmanon and Harassment Prohlblted by Federal Law (policy
4020/7230)Biserisn : Proce
Nondlscnmmanon on the Ba51s of stabllmes (pohcy 4022), School Volunteers (pohcy 5015),
Visitors to the Schools (policy 5020)

Adopted: July 14, 2014

Revised: February 9, 2015;_ (Legal references only)

M
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 4 of 4



GANG-RELATED ACTIVITY Policy Code: 4328

The Watauga County Board of Education (the “board™) strives to create a safe, orderly, caring
and inviting school environment. Gangs and gang-related activities have proven contrary to that
mission and are prohibited within the schools. A gang is any ongoing organization, association
or group of three or more persons, whether formal or informal, having as one of its primary
activities the commission of criminal acts and having a common name or common identifying
sign, colors or symbols. The violence and crime that accompany gangs pose a serious threat to
the safety of students and employees of the school system. Even absent acts of violence or
crime, the existence of gang-related activity within the schools creates an atmosphere of fear and
hostility that obstructs student learning and achievement. Thus, the board condemns the
existence of gangs and will not tolerate gang-related activity in the school system.

A. PROHIBITED BEHAVIOR

Gang-related activity is strictly prohibited within the schools. For the purposes of this
policy, “gang-related activity” means: (1) any conduct that is prohibited by another
board policy and is engaged in by a student on behalf of an identified gang or as a result
of the student’s gang membership; or (2) any conduct engaged in by a student to
perpetuate, proliferate or display the existence of any identified gang.

Conduct prohibited by this policy includes:

1. wearing, possessing, using, distributing, displaying or selling any clothing,
jewelry, emblems, badges, symbols, signs or other items with the intent to convey
membership or affiliation in a gang;

2. communicating either verbally or non-verbally (gestures, handshakes, slogans,
drawings, etc.) with the intent to convey membership or affiliation in a gang;

3. tagging, or otherwise defacing school or personal property with symbols or
slogans intended to convey membership or affiliation in a gang (see policy 4330,
Theft, Trespass and Damage to Property);

4. requiring payment of protection or insurance or otherwise intimidating or
threatening any person related to gang activity (see policy 4331, Assaults;_and
Threats-and-Harassment);

5. inciting others to intimidate or to act with physical violence upon any other

person related to gang activity (see policy 4331);
6. soliciting others for gang membership; and

7. committing any other illegal act or other violation of school system policies in
connection with gang-related activity.

e —————————————————————————————————————e re———————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 1 of 3



Policy Code: 4328

B. NOTICE

The superintendent or designee shall regularly consult with law enforcement officials to
maintain current examples of gang-related activities, including but not limited to gang
names and particularized examples of potential gang indicators including symbols, hand
signals, graffiti, clothing, accessories and behaviors. Each principal shall maintain a list
of current examples of gang-related activities to assist students, parents and teachers in
identifying gang symbols and practices. The list shall be available in an easily accessible-
location in the main office of the school. Parents, students and school employees may,
upon request, access the list, which shall include a warning that wearing or displaying
clothing, hand signs or symbols identified in the list with the intent to convey
membership or affiliation in any gang may subject a student to discipline under this
policy.

In addition, the Code of Student Conduct and all student handbooks (or such other similar
materials distributed to parents and students in lieu of a student handbook) shall contain
notice that (1) current information on gang-related activities is maintained in the main
office at each school; (2) information on gang-related activities is subject to change and
the principal should be consulted for updates; and (3) wearing or displaying clothing,
hand signs or symbols identified in the list with the intent to convey membership or
affiliation in any gang may subject a student to discipline under this policy. The Code of
Student Conduct and student handbook (or such other similar materials) also shall
provide the addresses of websites that contain additional information identifying gang
signs, symbols, clothing and other gang indicators.

In providing this information for students and parents, the board acknowledges that not
all potential gang indicators connote actual membership in a gang.

0

CONSEQUENCES

Before receiving disciplinary consequences for a violation of subsection A.1 or A.2,
above, a student shall receive an individualized warning as to what item or conduct is in
violation of this policy and shall be permitted to immediately change or remove any
prohibited items. A student may be disciplined only if he or she previously received
notice that the specific item or conduct is prohibited.

Disciplinary consequences for violations of subsections A.1, A.2 and A.6, above, shall be
consistent with Section D of policy 4300, Student Behavior Policies. The superintendent
or designee shall list in the Code of Student Conduct the specific range of consequences
that may be imposed on a student for violations of these subsections.

Violations of subsections A.3, A.4, A.5 and A.7, above, are violations of both this policy
and other board policies. Disciplinary consequences for such violations shall be
consistent with Section D of policy 4300 and the specific range of consequences listed in
the Code of Student Conduct for the other board policy violated. That the violation was

T ————————————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 2 of 3



Policy Code: 4328
¢ L/ VA /- ——

gang-related shall be an aggravating factor when determining the appropriate
consequences.

In a situation where a student has violated this policy or is otherwise suspected of gang
affiliation through other circumstantial evidence, the principal shall conduct an
intervention involving the principal and/or assistant principal, the student and the
student’s parent. Such intervention also may include the school resource officer and
others as appropriate. The purpose of an intervention is to discuss school officials’
observations and concerns and to offer the student and his or her parents information and
an opportunity to ask questions or provide other information to the school officials.

This policy shall be applied in a non-discriminatory manner based on the objective
characteristics of the student’s conduct in light of the surrounding circumstances.

Legal References: G.S. 115C-390.2

Cross References: Student Behavior Policies (policy 4300), Student Dress Code (policy 4316),
Theft, Trespass and Damage to Property (policy 4330), Assaults; and Threats-and-Harassment
(policy 4331), Criminal Behavior (policy 4335)

Adopted: October 13, 2014

Revised: August 13, 2018; (Legal references only)

e —————————————
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL Page 3 of 3



